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1              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  By the authority 

2 vested in me by the Illinois Commerce Commission, I 

3 now call Docket Number 12-0429.  This docket concerns 

4 the complaint filed by Keith Brown against Ameren 

5 Illinois Company.  The complaint alleges Mr. Brown was 

6 falsely accused of meter tampering in Godfrey, 

7 Illinois.  May I have the appearances for the record, 

8 first on behalf of the complainant, Mr. Brown? 

9              MR. BROWN:  Yes, ma'am.

10              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Just please give your 

11 name and your address.

12              MR. BROWN:  Oh.  Keith Brown, 2332 State 

13 Street, Alton, Illinois. 

14              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And on behalf of the 

15 respondent? 

16              MR. DEARMONT:  Good morning, Judge.  This 

17 is Eric Dearmont on behalf of Ameren Illinois Company, 

18 d/b/a Ameren Illinois.  My business address is 1901 

19 Chouteau Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri, 63166.

20              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.  Is there 

21 anyone else wishing to enter an appearance?  Let the 

22 record show no response.  Since we met, Ameren has 
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1 filed a motion to dismiss for lack of prosecution.  I 

2 issued a ruling requiring the complainant to either 

3 file testimony or a response to the motion by 

4 11-16-2012. 

5              I did receive earlier this week a 

6 document from the complainant which is entitled 

7 "Formal Complaint," and which appears to state the 

8 same claim as the complaint filed on July 16, 2012.  

9 Mr. Brown, did you intend to either respond to the 

10 motion or to file testimony in support of your 

11 complaint?

12              MR. BROWN:  Well, basically, ma'am, that 

13 was my testimony.  My initial -- what I initially sent 

14 to you all -- it was titled "Motion to Dismiss" -- or 

15 dismiss their co -- claim or whatever to -- whatever 

16 Ameren initially had submitted to dismiss this case -- 

17 that's what I submitted to reinstate it or whatever.  

18 But in actuality, that is my testimony.  That is my 

19 complaint.

20              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I understand that 

21 that's your complaint, Mr. Brown, but if that's the 

22 only thing you want to say in support of your 
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1 complaint, that's your decision, but most complainants 

2 also describe what happened, as in, "On a certain 

3 date, this happened.  This is what I said.  This 

4 is" -- you know -- some explanation of what you're 

5 referring to in regards to the alleged meter 

6 tampering.

7              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  Well, I'm looking 

8 at --

9              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And I'm not asking you 

10 to explain it right now.  I'm asking you if you wish 

11 to submit testimo -- written testimony that explains 

12 what your position is.

13              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  I'm not sure on what 

14 more -- I mean, because it goes in definition -- I 

15 mean, in depth of what actually occurred and what I'm 

16 seeking.  I didn't give a date on it.  I mean, do you 

17 have my complaint in front of you? 

18              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I have in front of me 

19 a document which has a caption on it and this Case 

20 Number, 12-0429.  It's titled "Formal Complaint," and 

21 it states, "Ameren Illinois, without legal merits, 

22 extorted $148 from me for an alleged meter tampering.  
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1 Their claim of tampering against me is unjust and 

2 without due process.  As a result of Ameren Illinois 

3 claim, I have lost $148 that I was blackmailed into 

4 paying in order to maintain the current service I had 

5 and the ability to start any new service in my name 

6 for purpose of performing renovation that I need to 

7 have done at other properties.  Seeking the return of 

8 $148 and the ability to obtain future service in my 

9 name without further encumbrances."

10              MR. BROWN:  Okay.

11              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Is that what you 

12 submitted for your testimony? 

13              MR. BROWN:  Yes, ma'am.

14              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Do you 

15 wish to submit anything else for your direct 

16 testimony? 

17              MR. BROWN:  I'm going to say that 

18 that's -- I'm going to submit that.

19              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Very well.  Mr. 

20 Dearborn, would Ameren like to respond to this? 

21              MR. DEARMONT:  Yes, Judge.  I would point 

22 out shortly after Mr. Brown filed his formal 



24

1 complaint, we responded with a motion to dismiss for 

2 failure to state a claim upon which relief could be  

3 granted.  Given the substance of the updated complaint 

4 or direct testimony -- whatever you want to call it -- 

5 I think that we're essentially still in the same boat 

6 that we were in following submission of the original 

7 complaint. 

8              I mean, I understand that part of the 

9 reason for today's proceeding may be to establish a 

10 schedule going forward, but from our position, I just 

11 don't know, if we set a deadline for what would be 

12 rebuttal testimony, for example, what really that 

13 testimony would, should, or could address, given the 

14 lack of depth in anything that we have on file.  So I 

15 would throw that out there and renew I guess verbally 

16 our original motion to dismiss for failure to state a 

17 claim, but --

18              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  May I add something? 

19              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes, please.

20              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  If the gentleman is 

21 alluding to some type of rule that Ameren has broke in 

22 regards to them charging me with this tampering, there 
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1 isn't anything that exists, as far as rules go, 

2 that -- for what they have fined me or are accusing me 

3 for.  I searched the ICC as well as Ameren, and 

4 there's nothing in there that outlines anything 

5 regarding tampering. 

6              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Brown, you've 

7 given us very little information as to what the facts 

8 in this case are in order to know whether or not 

9 Ameren has violated any rule at all or exactly what 

10 happened in the case.  You have said that Ameren 

11 tampered, but you have not explained any of the facts 

12 that you're basing that allegation on.

13              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  I mean, isn't it a 

14 given that -- okay.  I'm -- okay.  I guess I'm at a 

15 loss because I don't know what more -- I mean, it's a 

16 given that I was charged for tampering.  There's no 

17 proof that I was the one that had tampered with that 

18 meter, and other than what's already known, I don't 

19 know what more could have been added to state what 

20 they did.  I mean, it's already documented what they 

21 did.  They charged me with tampering, and there is 

22 no -- no, no, no, no, no, no -- in my opinion or my 
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1 assessment of it, there's no -- there's no -- they had 

2 no merit for charging me with tampering. 

3              I mean, there was no -- any proof that I 

4 tampered with their meter, other than I was the owner 

5 of the property, but other than that -- here's the -- 

6 and again, I don't know at this point if this needs to 

7 be formally written or not, but Ameren -- it's 

8 standard for Ameren to leave power on at a unit that 

9 does not have an actual account.  I mean, I've had 

10 this happen to me several times on rental property 

11 that I have, where a tenant has moved out, the power 

12 is still left on, and when I go in, again, the power 

13 is still on, and in many cases, it remains like that 

14 for months.  So for --

15              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Well, this 

16 is getting into something that you may or may not want 

17 to testify about, but this is not a hearing for taking 

18 evidence.  What we're doing this morning is deciding 

19 whether you have anything else you want to submit.  

20 You've submitted your complaint basically twice, and 

21 you've indicated that you don't wish to submit any 

22 further written testimony.
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1              MR. BROWN:  You know what, Your Honor?  I 

2 do.  I mean, if I could have some more time to 

3 actually submit more formal testimony, I would 

4 appreciate it. 

5              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  How much 

6 time would you like to have? 

7              MR. BROWN:  I would like -- can you give 

8 me two weeks?

9              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I certainly can.  I 

10 can give you more than two weeks if you wish for more 

11 than two weeks.

12              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  Because I may want to 

13 seek legal counseling.  What's the most that you can 

14 give me?  And would there be a transcript of this via 

15 the Internet, of our proceedings today?

16              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Yes, there will be a 

17 transcript --

18              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  Okay.

19              JUDGE VON QUALEN:   -- posted on eDocket 

20 in about two weeks or 10 days.

21              MR. BROWN:  Okay.

22              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  You mentioned you may 
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1 wish to get legal counsel.  What if we set this matter 

2 for a status hearing in the middle of December?  If 

3 you have testimony and can submit it by that time, 

4 that would be great.

5              MR. BROWN:  Okay.

6              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Otherwise, in -- at 

7 that time, if you decided to get counsel, your counsel 

8 can appear and enter his appearance at the -- or her 

9 appearance at the status hearing.

10              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  Now, you're saying 

11 it's going to -- the middle of December -- okay.  But 

12 it won't be posted on eDocket until a couple of weeks.  

13 Is there any chance -- because I would like to be able 

14 to actually view this transcript before I proceed 

15 further, so is there any chance that we could extend 

16 this out further than December, to give me a chance 

17 and me to actually submit something to a counsel if I 

18 choose to do so? 

19              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  We can put it over to 

20 the first part of January.

21              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  I would appreciate 

22 that, ma'am.
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1              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Would January the 3rd 

2 at 10:00 AM work for you? 

3              MR. BROWN:  January 3rd at 10:00 AM.  

4 Yes, ma'am. 

5              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Dearmont, would 

6 that work for you? 

7              MR. DEARMONT:  That appears to be open at 

8 this time, Judge.  We have no objection.

9              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  All right.  Mr. Brown.

10              MR. BROWN:  Yes, ma'am.

11              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  If you wish to file 

12 testimony, what I would suggest that you file would be 

13 a little narrative of what happened to you on what 

14 dates, what Ameren did, what you did, what you think 

15 was wrong about what was done, and why it is that 

16 you're saying that you were charged with tampering.

17              MR. BROWN:  Okay.

18              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  If there are any 

19 documents related to this, you may wish to attach 

20 bills from Ameren or something.

21              MR. BROWN:  Yes.  Okay.  Okay.  Okay.

22              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  I'm not asking for 
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1 everything you've ever had to do with Ameren; only 

2 things that are related to this specific event when 

3 you say that they unjustly alleged that you did meter 

4 tampering.

5              MR. BROWN:  Okay.  Understood.

6              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  If you can file your 

7 testimony in advance of the January 3 date, that would 

8 be fine.

9              MR. BROWN:  Sure.

10              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  And then we will use 

11 the January 3 date to set a date for Ameren to respond 

12 in whatever way it wishes.

13              MR. BROWN:  Okay.

14              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Do you have any other 

15 questions? 

16              MR. BROWN:  No, ma'am.  I appreciate it.

17              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Mr. Dearmont, do you 

18 have anything else you'd like to address today? 

19              MR. DEARMONT:  Not at this time, Judge.  

20 Thank you. 

21              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Very well, then.  I 

22 will continue this matter to January 3rd, 2013, at 
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1 10:00 AM. 

2              MR. BROWN:  Thank you.

3              MR. DEARMONT:  Thank you, Judge.

4              JUDGE VON QUALEN:  Thank you.
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